ALASKA STATE LEG SLATURE
SENATE STATE AFFAI RS STANDI NG COW TTEE
February 2, 2017
3:31 p.m

VEMBERS PRESENT

Senator M ke Dunl eavy, Chair
Senator David W/ son

Senat or Cathy G essel

Senat or John Coghi | |

Senat or Denni s Egan

VEMBERS ABSENT

Al'l nenbers present

COW TTEE CALENDAR

SENATE BILL NO 21

"An Act relating to appropriations fromthe incone of the Al aska
permanent fund; relating to the calculation of permanent fund
di vidends; and providing for an effective date."

- HEARD & HELD

PRESENTATION: Dr. Ralph Townsend, Institute of Social and
Econom ¢ Research, Answering Questions on Al aska's Econony

- HEARD
PREVI QUS COW TTEE ACTI ON
BILL: SB 21

SHORT TI TLE: PERVANENT FUND: | NCOVE; POW: DI VI DENDS
SPONSOR(s): SENATOR(s) STEDVAN

01/ 18/ 17 (S) READ THE FI RST Tl ME - REFERRALS
01/ 18/ 17 (S) STA, FIN
02/ 02/ 17 (S) STA AT 3: 30 PM BUTROVI CH 205

W TNESS REG STER

SENATOR BERT STEDMVAN, Al aska State Legislature
Juneau, Al aska

SENATE STA COW TTEE -1- February 2, 2017



PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Sponsor of SB 21.

ANGELA RCDELL, CEO

Al aska Permanent Fund Corporati on

Juneau, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Expl ai ned the status of the permanent fund.

DR. RALPH TOWNSEND, Director and Professor of Econom cs
Institute of Social and Econom c Research (1 SER)

Uni versity of Al aska- Anchorage

Anchor age, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Addressed Al aska's econoni c issues.

ACTI ON NARRATI VE

3:31:16 PM

CHAIR M KE DUNLEAVY called the Senate State Affairs Standing
Commttee neeting to order at 3:31 p.m Present at the call to
order were Senators WIson, Gessel, Coghill, Egan, and Chair
Dunl eavy.

SB 21- PERMANENT FUND: | NCOVE;, POW; DI VI DENDS

3:32:17 PM
CHAI R DUNLEAVY announced the consi deration of SB 21.

3:32:43 PM

SENATOR BERT STEDMAN, Al aska State Legislature, Juneau, Al aska,
set forth that SB 21 is very straight forward and sinple. He
said the bill's goal is to protect the permanent fund. He
explained that the state has struggled the last two or three
years through a budget deficit w thout the fortune of increasing
oil production and or prices. He said Al aska has slipped into a
state with nmassive henorrhaging of its savings. He noted that
the Legislature put away $16 billion outside of the pernmanent
fund, but the savings accounts have been depleted to $3.6
billion. He opined that $3.6 billion may sound like a lot, but a
$2.8 billion deficit nmakes the amount very small

3:34: 50 PM

He said over the last couple of years the Legislature has tal ked
about how to fix the deficit through budget reductions or tax
increases, but the "clock has ticked" and "Alaska's cash is
burned.” He set forth that the state has the fortunate
opportunity to be Dbackstopped by the permanent fund that

SENATE STA COW TTEE - 2- February 2, 2017



Al askans have set away for generations, approximately $56
billion. He added that the state is also fortunate to be the
owners of the largest conventional-hydrocarbon basin in North
America, which has been very profitable for Alaska. He pointed
out that his generation has lived through a huge wealth boon and
asserted that one of the nost inportant things his generation
can do in public service is protect the state's wealth that was
created for future generations.

3:37:23 PM

SENATOR STEDVAN opined that a reoccurring structural deficit
wi |l bankrupt the state. He set forth that the intent is to get
out of the structural deficit and nove to nore profitable tines.
He pointed out that not only does the Legislature need to make
sure the permanent fund is protected, but to also have a
framework to bolt other solutions to; exanple, spending
reductions, taxes, or inprovenents to the state's oil basin.

He voiced his concern that the Legislature can nore easily be
backed into the permanent fund's earnings reserve account (ERA).
He enphasized that the permanent fund is protected by the
constitution, but the fund's trading profits and dividends are
not. He noted that the Legislature has appropriated over tine
about $7 billion to the permanent fund's corpus, but ensuring
that the state has a long-term asset for future generations
requires the pernanent fund to be protected from the
Legislature. He remarked that the Alaska's legislators are
collectively the appropriators, good or bad the "buck stops" at
t he Legi sl ature.

He expl ained that he put forward a framework that he thought was
worthy of the Senate's consideration and hopefully beyond. He
said he offered his framework as a starting point and points of
di scussion to bolt onto. He asserted that the permanent fund's
current structure has been a good structure that has been very
productive for the people, but a hard | ook nust be taken to make
the fund nore protective because only the corpus is protected by
the constitution whereas the ERA and the rest of it is not.

3:41: 04 PM

CHAI R DUNLEAVY pointed out that Senator Stednan enphasized how
to protect the permanent fund and opined that he was really
tal ki ng about the ERA

SENATOR STEDMAN answered correct and specified that he was

tal king about the entire $56 billion, roughly the value of the
permanent fund. He pointed out that the Legislature can

SENATE STA COW TTEE - 3- February 2, 2017



currently access approximately $9 billion wthout "trading
profits,” in addition to held assets that can be sold for even
nore spending. He voiced his concern that the Legislature ends
up canni balizing the permanent fund to work through the state's
current situation. He agreed with Chair Dunleavy that the
permanent fund's corpus is protected, but the ERA is not.

He stated that SB 21 wuld protect the ERA and Ilimt
appropriations to guard the permanent fund from being raided. He
provi ded an overview of SB 21 as foll ows:

e Builds a new fiscal franework that provides a fair
di vi dend.

« Continues the proper managenent of the permanent fund.
e Limts use for public service.

He revealed that based on financial markets' history over the
past 100 years, pulling 4 percent to 5.5 percent out of the

permanent fund will also allow savings to last. He opined that
hi gher withdrawals will erode the permanent funds' savings over
time.

3:45:32 PM

He specified that SB 21 wll access the permanent fund as
fol |l ows:

 Wthdraw 4.5 percent of the market value so that the fund's
val ue does not erode for future generations.

e The permanent fund will grow nost likely in perpetuity by
inflation proofing itself because the asset returns wll
exceed the rate of inflation and wthdrawal, on average.

He pointed out that over the past 30 years there have been 10

econom ¢ shocks in the financial markets and the state will have
econoni ¢ shocks in the future; however, linmting the permanent
fund's withdrawal mght not exceed its rate of return in the
long run. He added that limting the withdrawal will protect the

fund fromthe legislative "wolves" fromgetting to it.

3:47. 44 PM

He admtted that the Legislature <cannot fix the state's
financial situation without the help of the permanent fund. He
asserted that the operating budget cannot be reduced enough, and
the state cannot tax enough. He said if the state is forced into
using the permanent fund, how to protect the permanent fund and

SENATE STA COW TTEE -4- February 2, 2017



be fair with Al askans on the permanent fund dividend (PFD) must
be addressed.

SENATOR STEDMAN detailed how SB 21 addresses the 4.5 percent
wi t hdrawal from the permanent fund as foll ows:

* Half or 2.25 percent of the "citizens' noney" goes to the
PFD.

e Half or 2.25 percent goes towards "core services" in the
oper ati ng budget .

» Legislature's 2.25 percent can either be added to the PFD
or returned to the permanent fund during strong economc
years.

e Mrket returns will be based on a five-year average over a
si x-year period for budgeting purposes and to snooth out
fluctuation "ripples” fromthe financial markets.

* Addressing how the Legislature appropriates its 2.25
percent on an annual basis would not be a spending cap, but
does exert downward pressure on the "appropriating body."

He noted his concern that the Legislature will get itself into a
situation over the next couple of years where billions fromthe
ERA are appropriated that cannot be repl aced.

3:53:51 PM

He addressed page 3, "Current Principles for the Permanent Fund"
and enphasi zed that SB 21 does not change how the pernmanent fund
is currently managed.

He addressed page 4, "Current Principles Wrk - 8.66 Percent
Annual i zed Returns for Last 32.5 Years ($734,000 in 1977 to
$56.3 billion Last Wek)." He said the permanent fund returns
over time vary due to economc conditions and portfolio
all ocations. He noted that Ms. Angela Rodell, CEO of the Al aska
Permanent Fund, was in attendance and could address the
intricacies of the permanent fund as well as her confort |eve

with the 4.5 percent w thdrawal.

He addressed page 5, "SB 21 (2017) Protects the Permanent Fund

under Current Principles: Invest Prudently, Provides a Fair
Dividend, Allows for Reinvestnment, and Limts the Anount for
Governnent." He specified that SB 21 <closes the door on

government spending and would not allow the Legislature to
appropriate over 4.5 percent out of the permanent fund. He
specified that the Legislature would have to take spending
seriously during a financial downturn because the ERA will not

SENATE STA COW TTEE - 5- February 2, 2017



be available to draw upon. He pointed out that the Legislature
can build upon the constitutional budget reserve (CBR) or other
savings accounts outside of the permanent fund if the
Legi slature so chooses; however, the permanent fund would be
t aken out of the discussion as an absolute fallback of unlimted
proportions that forces the Legislature to act rather than not
responding to deficits and sw nging econom ¢ conditions.

3:56:41 PM

SENATOR STEDMAN revealed that Sitka switched their "little
permanent fund" in the 1990s from all bonds to a percent-of-
mar ket - val ue approach with an annual payout of 6 percent to
their general fund. He noted that he assisted Sitka with their
fund restructuring. He said a 6 percent wthdrawal has shown to
be too high where Sitka has seen a slow erosion of purchasing
power over the |ast 20-plus years. He asserted that there is no
magic with a 4.5-percent withdrawal, but 6 percent is too high,
and 2 percent is too low to fix the problens that the state
faces in addition to dividend anpbunts com ng down substantially
as well. He set forth that he is trying to put on the table a
framework that facilitates discussions with the Al aska Pernmanent
Fund Corporation, legislative finance conmmttees, and all the
experts to work collectively.

3:58: 23 PM

He addressed page 6, "SB 21 (2017) - Projected 4.5 Percent Draw,
Di vidend Amounts, and O her Funds" and asserted that his intent
with SB 21 was not driven by how nmuch the PFD should be, but by
what structure should the state have to protect the pernanent
fund. He said with the structure in place, the structure is
split 50/50 and the PFD is determined for the public. He
projected that the PFD from SB 21 would be in the range of
$1,700 in 2018 and total $1.89 billion. He admtted that the
state's situation is so grave that the PFD strategy wll have to
be phased in, but the Legislature's ability to access 4.5
percent would be blocked. He said the public gets a fair
dividend, a fair split, and a fair shake for the assets they
own, and the legislature oversees. He set forth that the wealth
created over the last several decades continues for future
generati ons.

He addressed page 7, "SB 21 (2017) - Safeguards the Fund So It
Can G ow and Last for Cenerations." He reiterated that SB 21
hel ps close the fiscal gap and provides a framework to bolt-on
other tools as the Legislature sees fit, which wll have to be
added. He asserted that SB 21 hel ps keep downward pressure on
governnent spending and noted that one of the tools is the

SENATE STA COW TTEE - 6- February 2, 2017



spendi ng cap that Chair Dunleavy has worked on as well as others
that will be comng out. He said budget reduction discussions
are underway in addition to revenue enhancenents, but the
Legi slature needs a framework. He asserted that the Legislature
needs to have public support if the wealth comng off the
permanent fund is structured to be protected and shared with the
public. He said the public would share with the general fund
where objectives and obligations for education, public safety,
and the Departnment of Natural Resources are net. He opined that
wi t hout support the public will demand changes and that is why
the Legislature needs to set stability and predictability.

4:02:42 PM

SENATOR STEDVAN summarized that he is one of the "wolves"” in the
Legislature and there are 60 in total. He said Alaska's
| egi sl ators have good intentions, but collectively the
Legislature is very dangerous when there is a pot of noney in
front of it, especially with the biggest stack of billions

relative to the anount of people in the state. He remarked that
ot her states cannot even imagine Al aska's wealth. He set forth
that he just wants to make sure that the generation fortunate
enough on the tinmeline of life to be in A aska during the
weal t h-bubbl e deals with the deficit to pass the wealth forward
to the next generation of Al askans.

CHAI R DUNLEAVY opined that sone |egislators see thenselves as
"wolf hunters” who go after the "wolves" to protect the
permanent fund. He remarked that Senator Stedman's focus seens
to be on protecting the fund and noted his argunent that the ERA
is a portal to the permanent fund where wthdrawing too much
reduces the permanent fund. He asked why Senator Stedman did not
propose a constitutional anendnent rather than a bill that can
be changed by future |egislators.

4:04: 36 PM
SENATOR STEDMAN agreed with Chair Dunleavy and explained that
his decision was based on the public supporting the bill. He

said he thought starting with a statutory change would be
better, even though the next |egislature can change it.

CHAI R DUNLEAVY asked how a statutory change protects the
per manent fund.

SENATOR STEDWVAN replied that if the public supports the concept,

which he thinks they will when they realize how defensive the
bill is for permanent fund and how the bill does not change the
permanent fund's structure. He specified that the bill does not

SENATE STA COW TTEE -7- February 2, 2017



put the permanent fund at risk of being raided and closes the
door and "welds it shut.” He opined that the public is going to
be very receptive to a constitutional anmendnent and he would
personally like to see one.

CHAI R DUNLEAVY asked to confirm that Senator Stedman would
support a constitutional anendnment for his permanent fund
concept .

SENATOR STEDMVAN answer ed yes.

CHAI R DUNLEAVY pointed out that the state has a statute for
decades that calculated a PFD payout which was vetoed this past
year .

SENATOR STEDMAN answer ed correct.

CHAI R DUNLEAVY opined that if the permanent fund protection is
not constitutionalized, the "wolves" in one form or another can
"nmonkey" with it. He asked why Senator Stedman did not initially
advocate for his legislation to be a constitutional amendnent.

SENATOR STEDMAN replied that Chair Dunleavy made a good point.
He stated that his legislation is a point of timng where he

would like to see the public support whatever framework the
Legislature puts forward. He opined that SB 21 is a cornerstone
that is straightforward |ike an endowrent portfolio with no
"snmoke and mrrors." He said he thinks the public wll support

and want a constitutional anendnent to keep the "wolves" out
because the next several years are going to be tough years in
the Legislature for appropriating enough funds for the state to
make its payroll. He remarked that he would like to see input
from the Alaska Permanent Fund Corporation and the Al aska
Departnent of Revenue.

4:07:41 PM

CHAIR DUNLEAVY noted that Senator Stedrman said, "It's the
peopl e's noney" when referring to the PFD. He asked Senator
Stedman if he supported SB 1 and SB 2. He specified that SB 1
and SB 2 would return the vetoed portion of the PFD to the
people of Alaska. He said he wanted to be sure that he
under st ood what Senator Stedman is saying that he believes it is
t he "people's noney."

SENATOR STEDMAN replied as foll ows:

SENATE STA COW TTEE - 8- February 2, 2017



There's no doubt, not only is it the people' s noney,
but it's the people's oil, it's the people' s gas, the
"people's fish, bear, and deer. W are a state unlike
all other states that is owned in conmons. W are not
Texas, we don't have the "Ew ng's Ranch" on top of an
oil well, we collectively own it.

CHAIR DUNLEAVY remarked that he 1ooked forward to Senator
St ednman' s support on SB 1 and SB 2.

SENATOR G ESSEL noted that another proposal from the previous
year took a higher percentage from the ERA. She asked how the
| oner percentage change in SB 21 effects how the permanent fund
i s managed.

4:09: 05 PM

SENATOR STEDVAN replied that Angela Rodell from the Al aska
Per manent Fund Corporation would be nore adept at addressing
Senator G essel's question.

SENATOR EGAN pointed out that the state would currently be in a
nmore difficult financial situation if it were not for the Senate
Fi nance Committee that Senator Stedman chaired when $12 billion
was into the CBR He thanked Senator Stedman.

SENATOR STEDVAN replied as foll ows:

It's all about timng, trying to get public support. |
wish in retrospect we would have taken sonme of those
massi ve savings and put them in the permanent fund.
None of us expected to have this big of an economc
downdraft. W knew downdrafts come, but this has been
a doozy for the state, so it caught a lot of us by
surprise, | think

4:10: 26 PM

ANGELA RODELL, CEO, Al aska Permanent Fund Corporation, Juneau,
Al aska, addressed Senator G essel's previous question as
fol |l ows:

The nmanagenent of the fund wunder the proposed
| egi sl ation probably would not change. What is going
to drive changes to the nanagenment of the ERA as a
result of any legislation that mght conme forward is
going to be the liquidity demands and how quickly we
see that ERA getting drawn down and the expectation.

think one of the things that is helpful in all of the

SENATE STA COW TTEE - 9- February 2, 2017



pi eces of legislation including the senators is that
there is this "lag," so we are walking into a fixed-
dollar amount into the budgetary season and there is
not an expectation of expected earnings or an unknown
anount that may crop up in any of them So the nore
certainty we can have on the expected draws and what
those draws w Il be because due to the lags and the
percentages, the better able we wll be able to
manage. Now, the higher the percentage draws, the nore
we will have to look at the risk profile of the ERA to
make sure we have that higher dollar anmount avail able
that you' re expecting to be avail able for budgets.

4:11:47 PM

SENATOR COGHILL asked to confirm Senator Stedman's statenent
that the valuation process would be straight forward. He said he
knows the Permanent Fund Corporation's asset allocation is
dynamic and inquired if a "continuous valuation" would say that
the 4.5 percent withdranal would conme from a certain asset
per cent age.

M5. RODELL replied that SB 21's evaluation is straight forward
and conplies with all the issues that the Permanent Fund
Corporation has. She noted that the Alaska Constitution is
witten that the inconme is what is available for spending. She
said SB 21 continues to recognize the challenges the Permanent
Fund Corporation has between generally accepted accounting
princi ples and what can be made avail able for spendi ng bal ances.
She sunmarized that SB 21 is a very straight forward cal cul ation
for the Permanent Fund Cor porati on.

SENATOR G ESSEL noted that Senator Stednan projected that $1.1
billion would be nmade available by SB 21. She asked how much
woul d have been made avail able by SB 128 [29th Legislature].

M5. RODELL replied that she does not renenber.

4:13: 29 PM
CHAI R DUNLEAVY held SB 21 in committee.

4:14: 03 PM
At ease.

PRESENTATI ON: Dr. Ral ph Townsend - Institute of Social and
Econom ¢ Research, Answering Questions on Al aska's Econony.

4:15: 05 PM

SENATE STA COW TTEE -10- February 2, 2017



CHAI R DUNLEAVY announced that the next order of business is a
presentation by Dr. Townsend wth |ISER to address various
revenue neasures, cuts, inpact to the PFD, and behaviors
associated with sonme of the proposed actions.

4:16: 33 PM
At ease.

4:16: 42 PM
CHAI R DUNLEAVY called the commttee back to order.

4:16: 46 PM

DR. RALPH TOMSEND, Director and Professor of Econonics,
Institute of Social and Econom c Research (ISER), University of
Al aska- Anchorage, Anchorage, Alaska, noted that his staff
provided input from his previous presentation that also foll owed
up on Senator Stedman's point regarding Alaska's current fisca
chal l enges. He set forth that a good first step is to say that
the Legislature is hel ping the people nmanage four-nmajor assets:

O 1 and gas resources;

Fi nanci al assets (Permanent Fund, ERA, CBR)
Physi cal infrastructure;

Human capit al

PoObRE

He pointed out that the "physical infrastructure” that the state
has invested in heavily is a very substantial investnent. He
opined that "human capital” is sonetines left off and vitally
inmportant to the future of the state. He detailed that the state
makes investnments in its people in the form of education and the
state also nmekes investnents in institutions; for exanple, the
state creates court systens and finds the resources to define a
court system where having to invent a court system from scratch
woul d be difficult to equal the current system s functionality.

He said the oil and gas reserves were a very |arge asset and
dwarfed the state's financial assets; the strategy for that
period was straight forward where resources were taken from the
oil and gas reserves and placed into the financial assets,
physi cal infrastructure, and continuous investrment into hunman
capital that included education and health care. He pointed out
that the straight-forward strategy was not a difficult decision
process because noving assets fromoil and gas reserves into the
ot her ones was obvious where both the financial assets and the
physi cal infrastructure were used to balance out the economc
ups- and- downs.

SENATE STA COW TTEE -11- February 2, 2017



4:19: 34 PM

DR. TOMNSEND set forth that the state has m ssed the significant
shift in the relative inportance of oil and gas reserves over
time. He asserted that oil and gas reserves resources are nuch
| ess valuable in the present-val ue sense than the permanent fund
and its associated reserves. He pointed out that the state has
invested substantially in physical infrastructure and those
assets have increased so that today the financial and physica
infrastructure are a nuch bigger part of the nmanagenent issue
He remarked that the change was highlighted in 2015 and in fact
has been a long tine comng. He said the slow decline in the oi
production was masked to sone extent by the high-oil price. He
commended the Legislature and the people of Alaska for making
the decision to invest in both the fiscal infrastructure and
per manent fund rather than spending.

He said the issue going ahead is exactly the kinds of issues
related to SB 21 as to how does the state nmnages its financia
assets and how do the assets interact with the cyclical oil and
gas revenues as well as the state's decisions wth respect to
fiscal infrastructure and human capital. He sumarized as
fol |l ows:

2015 wasn't this dramatic turning poi nt, it
unfortunately highlighted a long-term trend and
despite the fact of having the budget reserve wth
enough funds to handle three or four years, the truth
was that the world was changing to a greater extent
than we had realized and planned for. The challenge
for us is managing these assets together going ahead
rather than worryi ng about nmanagi ng any one of them or
the sinple question of closing this year's budget gap.

4:22:55 PM

SENATOR WLSON noted that Dr. Townsend had previously talked
about how the state won't be able to support its infrastructure
if the state continues its capital budget at current |evels. He
asked what nunber or budget percentage is needed to sustain the
state's capital infrastructure.

DR. TOMWSEND replied that his background is not sufficient to
provide a specific nunber. He pointed out that the state was
putting in $100 mllion to match the federal match and that
would not keep up wth the state's large infrastructure. He
opined that it’'s likely the state will want to consider funding
its infrastructure nuch the same way as the other 49 states by
relying on their favorable access to capital by bonding |onger-

SENATE STA COW TTEE -12- February 2, 2017



term infrastructure projects. He noted that interest on
accessing capital is tax deductible and states have access to
capital at a lower interest rate than the private sector does.
He sunmarized that nost states support their highway and
bui l ding construction not entirely from their operating budget,
which is the way Al aska has done it for a long tine.

4:24:56 PM
CHAI R DUNLEAVY asked if he has | ooked at Al aska' s i ndebt edness.

DR. TOWNSEND answer ed no.

CHAI R DUNLEAVY suggested that Dr. Townsend |ook at Alaska's
i ndebt edness because that may help with what the state can or
cannot do regarding the idea of bonding. He opined that there is
a belief that "W can keep the party going as was, all we have
to do is just ante up,"” whereas sonme people question whether the
state can keep the party going even if we "ante up." He asked
that Dr. Townsend address the behaviors that will occur due to
"anteing up" fromincone taxes, sales taxes, property taxes, and
reductions. He said sone decisions nust be made soon and the
Legi sl ature wants the best possible advice, data, and research.

4:27:29 PM

DR. TOMSEND renmarked that Chair Dunleavy's inquiry is a very
broad question. He said decisions on leaving the state or
investing in the state are |long-term decisions. He opined that
peopl e are not |ooking at this year's budget, but are |ooking at
their situation over the next 5 to 10 years. He set forth that
an inportant piece is providing people with the ability to plan
for their futures with an outline of where the state is going
for both businesses and private individuals. He said the high-
| evel issue of identifying how the state is going to solve
vari ous aspects of a conplicated problemis inportant in hel ping
peopl e nake better deci sions.

DR TOMSEND said predicting short-run inpacts from taxes,
changes to the PFD, and various kinds of cuts to government is
not too difficult. He asserted that the short-run inpact from
taxes is going to be very simlar whether it is an incone tax,
sales tax, or increases in the property tax; however, a $100
mllion reduction to the PFD is a little worse. He explained
that sales and incone taxes by their nature are not evenly
di stributed, people with nore noney pay nore sales taxes and
people with nore incone pay nore incone taxes. He said the PFD
is evenly distributed and nore of it goes to people who are at
t he | owest end of incone.

SENATE STA COW TTEE -13- February 2, 2017



4:32:40 PM
CHAI R DUNLEAVY asked how Dr. Townsend defines "short ternml in
ternms of duration

DR. TOMNSEND expl ained that economsts refer to the "short run”
as a termof art. He specified that the "short run" is when the
obvious inpacts are being played out; for exanple, cutting the
PFD has an imedi ate inpact whereas the direct inpacts from
cutting the capital budget are felt over a period of five or
nore years rather than within the first year. The "long run" is
the period in which people have nmade all their adjustnents. He
sumari zed that "short run" is typically a year or tw and the
"long run" takes five or nore years for changes to work through
t he econony.

SENATOR EGAN addressed tax options and asked which tax is better
or worse for a famly of four with two adults and two chil dren.

4:36: 03 PM

DR. TOMSEND said there's been a great deal of research done
over tax regressivity and progressivity. He said the PFD nakes
Al aska different where the sane dollar amount is distributed to
everyone, so a cut to the PFD has a nore negative and regressive
i npact on |lower-incone people. He asserted that a sales tax by
its nature is somewhat nore regressive than a flat-inconme tax,
but an inconme tax can be nade progressive by focusing on upper-
inconme individuals. He said people with fixed incones tend to be
adversely af fected by property t axes; however , many
jurisdictions address that feature wth various Kkinds of
"circuit breakers."

4:39:53 PM

SENATOR G ESSEL pointed out that Dr. Townsend previously nmade a
statenent about the inportance of making changes over tine to
allow people to plan for adjustnents. She noted that the
Legislature is dealing with a significant issue regarding the
tax-credit program the state of Alaska has for the oil and gas
i ndustry. She explained that the conpanies that were prom sed
tax credits are new entrants into Al aska and conpared themto a
| ower-income famly w thout the assets to start their work and
Al aska offered to "back fill" the businesses; however, the
governor vetoed the tax credits and suddenly their |oans are
comng due and the businesses cannot pay the interest. She
remarked that the tax-credits veto is analogous to the
government suddenly inmposing a tax that is causing a credibility
gap for the state. She opined that governnent inserted itself

SENATE STA COW TTEE -14- February 2, 2017



into what was otherwise a free market and distorted the nmarket
by promsing the tax credits and then suddenly pulled out. She
set forth that a prom se was nmade, and the state has not paid
its prom se. She asked that Dr. Townsend address the state's tax
credit program

4:42: 54 PM

DR. TOMSEND explained that Alaska's oil-tax-credit system is
conplicated with 15 to 20 different prograns and sub-pieces that
applies to latitudinal locations. He detailed that the tax-
credit program interacts wth the system of how the state
collects its benefits from the oil reserves. He set forth that
resol ving the question about oil and gas credits is an inportant
pi ece of noving forward from a fiscal point of view He opined
that the tax-credit program is inherently conplex and hard to
understand for many people to nake decisions. He set forth that
the two-immedi ate issues are: the state created expectations in
terms of being a partner, and the credits becane cashable. He
detailed as foll ows:

Having people feel that your expectations that you
created can be net is inportant, so it's part of that
resolution; but, the last piece of course is that the
oil and gas credits when they becane cashable noved
from being what we think of as traditional credit,
that is they reduce our tax revenues, they noved over
to the expenditure side of the budget and that has
created sone real problens for the current fiscal
situation because the size of those are very large at
present relative to the revenue that is comng in from
the oil industry. | think all of those, it's a knotty
problem but it strikes ne that in ternms of noving
ahead and managing our future assets that is one of
the issues that absolutely needs to be resolved
because leaving it unresolved both Ileaves the
operators in uncertainty, but also neans year-after-
year it's back

4. 46: 57 PM
SENATOR COGHI LL asked if |ISER has analyzed Al aska's regiona
economi es.

4:49: 13 PM

DR. TOMSEND replied that |ocal governnent enploynent has not
been very directly inpacted through 2015 and 2016, but changes
seem inevitable as the econony declines on the |[ocal
governnments. He said ISER is putting nore analysis into |oca

SENATE STA COW TTEE - 15- February 2, 2017



econoni es, but getting data on snaller commnities is difficult.
He pointed out that the permanent fund does generate data about
residents and non-residents. He said Fairbanks' econony nmay do
better from increased mlitary spending; however, areas that
depend on governnent enploynent, the PFD, and subsistence wll
be disproportionally effected when conpared to the urban centers
with diversified economes. He stated that ISER will be trying
to quantify the magnitude of the changes that |ocal econom es
wll see.

4:52: 37 PM

SENATOR COGHI LL explained that the Legislature |ooks at
subsidies for a lot of different things; for exanple, power-cost
equal i zation. He opined that knowi ng the nost productive parts
of the state's econony in relation to subsidies would be
beneficial when addressing a broad-based tax regardi ng who bears
the weight. He set forth that one size does not fit all very
well. He renmarked that the state's geography has a big inpact on
what the Legislature does.

DR. TOMSEND replied that data is available to distinguish how
the recession has played out and will continue to play out in
rural areas.

4:55:43 PM
SENATOR COGHI LL commented that he was expressing his frustration
in inmplenmenting sonething that is broad based.

CHAI R DUNLEAVY asked to confirm that reducing the PFD by $700
mllion inpacted both those with the | owest incones as well as a
| ar ger percentage that spends their noney in Al aska.

DR. TOANSEND replied that he agreed to an extent. He pointed out
that stores in Alaska primarily bring in resources from outside
of the state. He said the question is whether people are
spending their PFD on things that are processed within the
st at e.

SENATOR COGHI LL pointed out that one of the biggest inpacts to
the reduction in the PFD are famlies that carry an economc
| oad just outside of the poverty |evel.

4:58: 33 PM

DR. TOWNSEND opi ned t hat progr ans W th i ncome- based
qualification is nuch less the case than 30 or 40 years ago. He
conceded that people face large health-care costs, but income-
based prograns exist for specific mal adies.

SENATE STA COW TTEE -16- February 2, 2017



SENATOR COGHI LL countered that he has seen a dramatic increase
in health-care costs in his district, alnpbst a 60-percent rise.
He said conbined with energy costs and no subsidies, mddle-
i ncone people were nearly broke to the starvation point.

5:00: 33 PM
CHAI R DUNLEAVY revealed that he had gone to nmany "Al askana"
busi nesses that sel | f our - wheel er s, snow machi nes, boat s,

etcetera and owners said they were not doing very well due to
oil conmpany lay-offs and the cut to the PFD. He asked how mnuch
the $700 mllion PFD cut inpacted the Al aska econony.

5:03: 23 PM

DR TOMNSEND replied that the $700 mllion to the PFD had a
significant inpact on the econonmy. He opined that if the $700
mllion was put into the econony, the level of the state's
recessi on would have been noderated significantly with a 3,000
or 4,000 job difference. He explained that the reduced PFD al so
had an inpact on future purchases as well. He noted an |SER
study that showed Al aska's PFD program has reduced poverty by 25
percent. He opined that Alaska's PFD program is unique in the
US and is like European countries that provide income to
famlies with children. He said that taking the prograns away in
Europe would be viewed as having a negative inpact on famlies
and reducing the PFD would have a simlar negative inpact on the
| owest incone Al askans.

CHAI R DUNLEAVY asked if he noved to Al aska for the PFD
DR. TOMWNSEND answered that he did not.

CHAI R DUNLEAVY remarked that people have noved to Al aska for the
PFD and inquired if research has been done on the topic.

5:08:46 PM

DR. TOMNSEND renmarked that noving to Alaska is expensive in
addition to the state's higher cost of living. He conceded that
receiving the PFD woul d be part of the cal culation on whether to
nove to Al aska, but the PFD would not domi nate the decision due
to other factors.

CHAI R DUNLEAVY announced that the commttee will welcome Dr.
Townsend back for future neetings. He opined that the research
and data | SER provides is inportant so that the Legislature can
make sound deci si ons.

SENATE STA COW TTEE -17- February 2, 2017



5:10: 44 PM
There being no further business to cone before the commttee,

Chair Dunleavy adjourned the Senate State Affairs Standing
Commttee at 5:10 p. m

SENATE STA COW TTEE - 18- February 2, 2017



